
CITY OF PLYMOUTH, WISCONSIN 
TUESDAY, JUNE 25, 2024 COMMON COUNCIL MEETING  

7:00 PM COUNCIL CHAMBERS, ROOM 302 
128 SMITH ST. PLYMOUTH, WI 53073 

 
AGENDA  

 
1. Call to order and roll call:  

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
3. Approval of the Consent Agenda (Alderpersons may request removal of item(s), or 

part thereof without debate or vote):  
A. Approve minutes of the meeting held Tuesday, June 11, 2024 
B. Approve City and Utility Reports: 

I. Electric, Water and Sewer Sales Report – May 2024 
II. Utility Related Write Offs for May / June - $3,220.56 

C. Minutes acknowledged for filing - Library Board: May 6 – Board of Review: 
June 4 

D. Approve list of July 1, 2024 to June 30, 2024 Alcohol Beverage License and 
Cigarette Applications: Approved by Police Department and Clerk’s Office 

E. Approve Application for Fireworks Permit from Wolverine Fireworks – 
Request to waive fee 

 
4. Audience Comments: Citizens comments must be recognized by the mayor or 

presiding officer and are limited to three minutes per person from those signed in on 
the registration sheet located at the back of the Council Chambers prior to the start 
of the meeting. 

 
5. Items removed from Consent Agenda: 

 
6. Public Hearing followed by Discussion and Action: 

A. No. 8 An Ordinance Amending Section 13-1-21, Zoning Map, and the 
City of Plymouth, Wisconsin Comprehensive Plan Existing Land Use 
Map and Future Land Use Plan Map by Changing Property from 
Commercial to Residential – Tim Blakeslee, City Administrator / 
Utilities Manager 

 
7. New Business: 

A. Approve of CSM: A division of Lot 3 of Certified Survey Map recorded 
in Volume 25 Pages 135-138 as Document No. 1941216, being located in 
a part of the Northwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4, and a part of the 
Southwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 23, Township 15 North, 
Range 21 East, City of Plymouth, Sheboygan County, Wisconsin.– Tim 
Blakeslee, City Administrator / Utilities Manager 

B. Acceptance of ROOTS Grant for Collaborative Acquisition of a Mobile 
Irrigation System – Cathy Austin, Director of Public Works 

C. Approval of Substation Agreement Amendment related to Landscaping 
at Substation No. 5 with ANR Pipeline Company. – Tim Blakeslee, City 
Administrator / Utilities Manager 
 
 
 



8. Entertain a motion to go into closed session for the following: 
pursuant to Wis. Stat. 19-85 (1) (e) Deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of 
public properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting other specified public 
business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session 
regarding Mill Pond Dam 

 
9. Entertain a motion to go into open session 

 
10. Discussion and possible action on closed session item/s 

 
11. Adjourn to 7:00 PM on Tuesday, July 9, 2024 

 
It is likely a quorum of members of other governmental bodies of the municipality may be in attendance at the above stated meeting to 
gather information.  No action will be taken by any governmental body at the above stated meeting other than the governmental body 
specifically referred to above in this notice. 
 
Please note that, upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate 
aids and services.  For additional information or to request this service, please contact the City of Plymouth ADA Coordinator Leah 
Federwisch, located in the Plymouth Utilities office at 900 County Road PP, Plymouth, WI or call 920-893-3853.  
 



CITY OF PLYMOUTH, WISCONSIN 
TUESDAY, JUNE 11, 2024 COMMON COUNCIL MEETING  

128 SMITH ST. PLYMOUTH, WI 53073 
 

UNOFFICIAL MINUTES 
 

1. Call to order and roll call: Mayor Donald Pohlman called the meeting to order at 7:00 
PM. On the call of the roll the following Alderpersons were present: Angie Matzdorf, 
Diane Gilson, Mike Penkwitz, Jeff Tauscheck, John Nelson, John Binder, Greg 
Hildebrand and Dave Herrmann. Also present were: City Administrator/Utilities Manager 
Tim Blakeslee, Attorney Crystal Fieber, Police Chief Ken Ruggles, Director of Public 
Works Cathy Austin, and City Clerk Anna Voigt.  

 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
3. Approval of the Consent Agenda (Alderpersons may request removal of item(s), or 

part thereof without debate or vote): Clerk Voigt mentioned that item 3g had a typo. 
The Brown Bottle, City Club, Cozy Bar, Plymouth Tap, and Wild Shots Pub should say 
Class “B” Beer / “Class B” Liquor. Mayor Pohlman also noted the Council Meeting date 
for August as August 14 due to the 2024 Partisan Primary. Motion was made by 
Binder/Tauscheck to approve the consent agenda. Upon the call of the roll, all voted aye. 
Motion carried.  

A. Approve minutes of the meeting held Tuesday, May 28, 2024 
B. Approve City and Utility Reports: 

I. List of City & Utility Vouchers dated 05/01/2024 – 05/31/2024 
C. Minutes acknowledged for filing – Committee of the Whole: May 28 –

Redevelopment Authority: May 30 
D. Building Report for May 2024 – 50 permits at $1,488,246.00 
E. Approve Application for Event: Dire Dyes Open 4 / Disc Golf Tournament / 

Meyers Park – August 10 from 9 AM – 3 PM 
F. Approve Request to Sell Police Department and Department of Public Works 

Surplus Equipment  
G. Approve list July 1, 2024 to June 30, 2024 Alcohol Beverage License 

Application: Approved by Police Department and Clerk’s Office 
H. Approve Sidewalk Café Permit for Cheese Counter and Dairy Heritage 

Center, 133 E Mill St. 
I. Approve Temporary Class “B” Alcohol License for Plymouth Municipal 

Band – German Night in City Park, to be held at City Park 203 Suhrke Rd. 
On July 25 from 4 PM – 11 PM. Underage persons are requested to be on the 
premise. 

J. Approve Council Meeting for August 13 to be moved to August 14 due to the 
2024 Partisan Primary 
 

4. Audience Comments: Citizens comments must be recognized by the mayor or 
presiding officer and are limited to three minutes per person from those signed in on 
the registration sheet located at the back of the Council Chambers prior to the start 
of the meeting: Lynn Elmer spoke in public comment about their interest in Plymouth 
allowing ATVs and UTVs. She would like to see the City of Plymouth allow them on City 
roads. She thinks it would be profitable for the city.  

 
5. Items removed from Consent Agenda: None 

 
6. Public Hearing followed by Council Discussion and Action:  



A. Ordinance No. 6 – An Ordinance Amending 13-1-21, Zoning Map, and 
the City of Plymouth, Wisconsin Comprehensive Plan Existing Land Use 
Map and Future Land Use Plan Map by Changing Property from Heavy 
Industrial to General Business: Mayor Pohlman opened the public hearing 
at 7:07 PM. City Administrator / Utilities Manager explained Sargento’s 
primary manufacturing facility is located at One Persnickety Place. This 
parcel also includes the legal non-confirming office building known as the 
LAG Building. The LAG building is a legal non-conforming structure because 
it encroaches on the setback requirement in the HI district on the north and 
west. In order to allow an addition to the LAG building, it must be brought 
into conforming zoning status. A Comp Plan Amendment and Rezoning must 
take place to allow the current structure to meet zoning code requirements and 
allow a potential future addition to the LAG building.  There being no public 
comment the Mayor called the Public Hearing closed. Motion was made by 
Hildebrand/Matzdorf to approve Ordinance No. 6. Upon the call of the roll, all 
voted aye. Motion carried. 

 
7. Ordinance: 

A. No. 7 – Amending Section 2-4-7 of the City of Plymouth Code of General 
Ordinances Regarding the Parks Committee – City Administrator / 
Utilities Manager Blakeslee explained that in November 2023, the Common 
Council approved Ordinance No. 10 that moved the Parks Committee to meet 
on an as-needed basis. The Park Committee currently has 7 volunteer 
positions with currently 2 vacancies. Due to the more potentially sporadic 
meeting schedule, staff recommends reducing the number of committee 
members from 7 to 5. Motion was made by Nelson/Tauscheck to approve 
Ordinance No. 7. Upon the call of the roll, all voted aye. Motion carried. 

 
8. Resolution: 

A. No. 8 Approving the Compliance Maintenance Resolution to the 
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (CMAR) – Director of Public 
Works Austin reviewed the yearly CMAR required by the DNR. The purpose 
of CMAR is to evaluate the wastewater treatment system for problems or 
deficiencies. The overall grade for the treatment plant is an “A”. Motion was 
made by Penkwitz/Herrmann to approve Resolution No. 8. Upon the call of 
the roll, all voted aye. Motion carried.  

 
9. New Business: 

A. Approval of Housing Study and Action Plan Proposal - City Administrator 
/ Utilities Manager Blakeslee explained over the past year the Ad-Hoc 
Affordable Housing Committee collected information regarding the needs, 
opportunities, and challenges of housing in Plymouth. The first 
recommendation from the committee was the adoption of an R6 high-density 
zoning district. The second recommendation was to engage a consultant to 
facilitate the successful implementation of the community housing study and 
action plan. On June 5 the committee moved to recommend the proposal 
submitted by Redevelopment Resources. Motion was made by 
Nelson/Hildebrand to approve the housing study and action plan proposal 
from Redevelopment Resources. Upon the call of the roll, all voted aye. 
Motion carried.  

B. Approval of Plymouth Substation #5 Structure and Materials Bid –City 
Administrator / Utilities Manager Blakeslee explained now that the final order 
for the CA has been issued for the substation staff is moving forward with 



bidding the various components of the substation project. Bids for Plymouth 
Substation #5 Structure and Materials were opened May 31, 2024. The low 
bid was Border States totaling $430,233.10. Motion was made by 
Tauscheck/Matzdorf to approve Substation #5 Structure and Materials Bid 
from Boarder States Electric for $420,233.10 subject to attorney/staff review 
and approval of the terms and conditions. Upon the call of the roll, all voted 
aye. Motion carried.  

C. Approval of Utilities Battery Backup Purchase – City Administrator / 
Utilities Manager Blakeslee explained the Plymouth Utilities Building now 
approximately 12 years old, is beginning to show signs of aging, with 
components needing repair or replacement. The battery backup system and 
charger unit have deteriorated over time and are in need of replacement. 
Motion was made by Tauscheck/Hildebrand to approve the replacement 8-
hour backup system in the amount of $114,673.28. Upon the call of the roll, 
all voted aye. Motion carried. 

D. Approval of Library AC Repair - City Administrator / Utilities Manager 
Blakeslee explained that the library is served by several air conditioner units. 
One of the AC units that supports the 1st floor is no longer operational and is 
in need of replacement this year. Staff recommends using the capital fund 
balance to fund the repair this year. This would typically be a capital request 
but staff does not recommend waiting to replace this unit as it will put stress 
on the other AC units. Motion was made by Nelson/Tauscheck to approve the 
replacement of the Library AC repair for $11,202. Upon the call of the roll, all 
voted aye. Motion carried. 

 
10. Adjourn to 7:00 PM on Tuesday, June 25, 2024: Motion was made by 

Hildebrand/Binder to adjourn the meeting. A unanimous aye vote was cast. Motion 
carried.  

  



Plymouth Utilities
MAY 2024

SALES & REVENUE



May 2024 Electric Sales



May 2024 Electric Revenue

Overall revenue is down from 2023 as a result of reduced PCAC rates. In turn, Purchase Power expense 
is down.



May 2024 Water Revenue



May 2024 Sewer Revenue





Page: 1Transaction Register - Daily by Reference NumberPLYMOUTH UTILITIES

Jun 17, 2024 3:50PMDates: 05/31/2024 - 06/17/2024

Report Criteria:

Selected types: Write Off

Name
Customer
Number Type

Reference
Number Description Source ID

Check
Number Amount Msg Service

Write Off

05/31/2024

HINTERSTOCKER, NICOL 10.87.38534.24 Write 1 WRITE-OFF SDC 449.44- M Multiple

HINTERSTOCKER, NICOL 10.87.38842.12 Write 2 WRITE-OFF SDC 289.26- M Multiple

Total 05/31/2024: 738.70-

06/17/2024

COTTONWOOD FINANCIA 5.88.61550.02 Write 1 BANKRUPTCY 348.11- M Multiple

HARNEY, BRIAN 6.88.80171.16 Write 2 IN-HOUSE WRITE-OFF 39.35- M Multiple

HUENINK, CHRISTOPHER 6.88.70600.21 Write 3 SDC WRITE-OFF 193.63- M Multiple

LOVE, SANDRA 13.87.26431.16 Write 4 SDC WRITE-OFF 957.32- M Multiple

LYTER, DYLAN 14.88.27512.05 Write 5 SDC WRITE-OFF 434.15- M Multiple

MEYER, BRANDYN 6.88.70580.25 Write 6 SDC WRITE-OFF 163.80- M Multiple

SCHUH, RICHARD 3.88.11502.05 Write 7 SDC WRITE-OFF 83.84- M Multiple

SIZEMORE, TRISHA 3.88.39154.09 Write 8 SDC WRITE-OFF 261.66- M Multiple

Total 06/17/2024: 2,481.86-

Total Write Off: 3,220.56-

Grand Totals: 3,220.56-

Msg: M= Manually Allocated    F= Final Bill



 

 
PLYMOUTH PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

MEETING MINUTES 
May 6, 2024 

 
Meeting was called to order by K. Murray at 6:30 pm.  Present were: S. 
Britt, S. Gloede, A. Matzdorf, B. McKnight, K. Murray, M. Kaczkowski, and 
M. Hummitzsch. Absent were: P. Norlander. Also present: Library Director 
L. Jochman 
 
Motion by A. Matzdorf, second by S. Gloede to approve the minutes of the 
April 1, 2024 meeting. Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Motion by B. McKnight, second by M. Hummitzsch to approve the financial 
report for April 2024.  Motion passed unanimously.  
 
Director L. Jochman reviewed some highlighted items on her monthly 
report. This included a new seed library, the soft launch of the new 
Monarch online catalog, and a patron complaint. 
 
Old Business 
 
Director L. Jochman and President K. Murray updated the Board on the 
Space Needs Analysis. It included updates from the April meetings, 
information on LEED certification, information on a State of Wisconsin 
Flexible Facilities grant opportunity. 
 
Director L. Jochman and President K. Murray updated the Board on the 
special meeting of the Foundation. It included the passing of the rewritten 
By-laws and discussion of the Memorandum of Understanding. 
 
New Business 
 
Director L. Jochman called for nominations for officer positions. B. 
McKnight nominated K. Murrary for President, second by S. Gloede. Motion 



 

passed unanimously. S. Gloede nominated B. McKnight for Vice President, 
second by M. Kaczkowski. Motion passed unanimously. 
 
President K. Murray presented the restated Foundation By-Laws. Motion by 
S. Gloede to approve the By-laws as written, second by M. Hummitzsch. 
Motion passed unanimously. 
 
President K. Murray asked for nominations to the Foundation Board. S. 
Gloede moved to nominate S. Britt, second by B. McKnight. Motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
Director L. Jochman presented an update to the Adult Services Librarian 
Position Description. Motion by M. Hummitzsch to approve the revised 
position description, second by M. Kaczkowski. Motion approved 
unanimously. 
 
Announcements 
 
S. Britt brought up the landscaping project from last year. She will work with 
S. Gloede to place some divided plants from their yards into the flower bed 
in front of the children’s area window. 
 
Motion by S. Gloede, second by A. Matzdorf to adjourn.  Motion passed.  
Meeting was adjourned at 7:28 pm. 
 
 

Submitted by, Leslie Jochman 
Library Board Secretary 

 



 CITY OF PLYMOUTH 
City Hall, 128 Smith Street 

Board of Review Meeting – June 4, 2024 
 

MINUTES 
 

1. Call to order and roll call: Mayor Pohlman called the meeting to order at 1:00 PM. On 
call of the roll the following regular members were present: Mayor Don Pohlman, 
Alderperson John Nelson, Private Member Gary Kramer, Alternate Carole O’Malley and 
City Clerk Anna Voigt. Assessor Tom Okrie from Associated Appraisal Consultants, 
Inc., Administrator Tim Blakeslee, and Attorney Crystal Fieber. 
 

2. Select Chair and Vice-Chair: Mayor Pohlman called for nomination for Chair. Motion 
was made by O’Malley and seconded by Voigt to nominate Gary Kramer as Chair with 
unanimous vote to close nominations and approve the selection. Motion was made by 
Kramer and seconded by Nelson to nominate Mayor Pohlman as Vice-Chair with a 
unanimous vote to close nominations and approve the selection. Motion carried. 

 
3. Verify that Interim Clerk filed the required training affidavit (Done May 31, 2024): The 

City Clerk verified that the training affidavit indication John Nelson as qualified trainee was 
electronically filed with the State on May 31, 2024. 

 
4. Confirm: The assessor and/or City Cler each verified the information as stated below. 

a. Assessment notices were mailed on May 13, 2024: 
b. Open Book dates were May 24, 2024, 9:00 AM to 11:00 PM, Assessor Tom Okrie was 

present. Publication was in the Plymouth Review on May 3, 2024.  Postings were placed 
at City Hall lobby, Plymouth Utilities, and Plymouth Library on May 3, 2024.  2024 
Guides for Property Owners were available at the Clerk’s Office as well as from the 
Assessor.  

c. The Board of Review publication was done on May 3, 2024 in the Plymouth Review.  
Postings were placed in the City Hall lobby, Plymouth Utilities, and Plymouth Public 
Library on May 3, 2024. 

 
5. Examine Assessment Roll to confirm Assessor’s Affidavit and signature are attached and 

confirm what level assessment is at: City Clerk verified the Affidavit and Signatures. Assessor 
Okrie stated that the level of assessment for the City is going to be about 83% and indicated this 
will be the 2nd year out of compliance. 
 

6. Certify all corrections of error under state law, if any: Assessor Tom Okrie indicated that 
there were no corrections 

 
7. Consider any of the following: City Clerk Voigt stated that there was nothing scheduled for 

items A-C. 
 

a. Waivers of the required 48-hour notice of intent to file an objection. 
b. Waivers of the BOR hearing allowing the property owner to appeal directly to circuit 

court. 
c. Requests to testify by telephone or submit sworn written statement. 

 
8. Schedule hearings for written objections, if any requests for removal of a board member 

and/or alternates: City Clerk Voigt indicated there were no scheduled cases to be heard. 
 

Motion was made by Voigt and seconded by Pohlman to recess the meeting until 2:55 PM or 
until such time a citizen may appear. The recorder was shut off at 1:11 PM. 



 
 9. Conduct Board of Review Hearings: None heard. 
 

10. Adjournment: Motion was made by Pohlman and seconded by O’Malley to reconvene 
the meeting The recorder was turned back on at 2:58 PM. On the call of the roll the following 
regular members were present: Mayor Don Pohlman, Alderperson John Nelson, Private Member 
Gary Kramer, Alternate Carole O’Malley, and City Clerk Anna Voigt. Assessor Tom Okrie from 
Associated Appraisal Consultants, Inc. were also present. Motion was made by Nelson and 
seconded by O’Malley to adjourn. On the call of the roll, all voted aye. The meeting adjourned at 
3:00 PM.  



I hereby certify that the following establishments have applied to the City of Plymouth, WI for Alcohol 
Licenses for the period ending June 30, 2025. 

         Anna Voigt, City Clerk 

Business Name / Trade 
Name 

Applicant 
Address 

Location of 
Premises 

Agent License 

Walgreens Co / 
Walgreens #01497 
 

PO Box 901  
Deerfield, IL 
60015 

2455 Eastern Ave 
Plymouth, WI 
53073 

Aidaelys 
Campos 

Class “A” Beer 

Hariomkrishna 
Patroleum Inc. / 
Plymouth BP 

1312 Eastern Ave 
Plymouth, WI 
53073 

1312 Eastern Ave 
Plymouth, WI 
53073 

Dhaval Patel Class “A” Beer / 
“Class A” Liquor 

Hollandtown Minimart 
LLC / Plymouth Shell 

1403 Eastern 
Ave., 
Plymouth, WI 
53073 

1403 Eastern Ave. 
Plymouth, WI 
53073 

Durga Tiwari Class “A” Beer / 
“Class A” Liquor 

Weber Family Stations 
LLC / Weber’s of 
Plymouth 

PO Box 174  
Kiel, WI 53042 

3250 Highway PP 
Plymouth, WI 
53073 

Dennis Weber Class “A” Beer / 
“Class A” Liquor 

Plymouth Softball 
Association Inc./  
Plymouth Softball 
Association 

PO Box 524 
Plymouth, WI 
53073 

1555 Riverview Rd 
Plymouth, WI 
53073 

Terri 
Schumacher 

Class “B” Beer 

Sheboygan Cnty 
Agricultural Assoc./ 
Sheboygan County Fair 
Association 

229 Fairview Dr. 
Plymouth, WI 
53073 

229 Fairview Dr. 
Plymouth, WI 
53073 

David Mohs Class “B” Beer 

Hariomkrishna 
Petroleum Inc / 
Plymouth Restaurant 
and Bar 

1312 Eastern Ave. 
Plymouth, WI 
53073 

1312 Eastern Ave. 
Plymouth, WI 
53073 

Dhavalkumar 
Patel 

Class “B” Beer / 
“Class C” Wine 

Devour WI / Devour 1611 Eastern Ave. 
Plymouth, WI 
53073 

1611 Eastern Ave. 
Plymouth, WI 
53073 

Dennis Erdly Class “B” Beer / 
“Class C” Wine 

Uncle Dinos Pizza, LLC / 
Dinos Pizza 

19 S Milwaukee 
St. 
Plymouth, WI 
53073 

19 S Milwaukee St. 
Plymouth, WI 
53073 

Travis 
Lambrecht 

Class “B” Beer / 
“Class C” Wine 

Triona LLC / 
Antoinette’s, Antonios, 
Amore 

18 W Mill St. 
Plymouth, WI 
53073 

18 W Mill St. 
Plymouth, WI 
53073 

Shaun Thome Class “B” Beer / 
“Class B” Liquor 



In the Bag LLC / Turner 
Hall Bar & Grill 

202 Elizabeth St. 
Plymouth, WI 
53073 

202 Elizabeth St. 
Plymouth, WI 
53073 

Andra 
Humphrey 

Class “B” Beer / 
“Class B” Liquor 

Frank’s Pizza / DeO’s 
Pizzeria & Pub 

417 E Mill St. 
Plymouth, WI 
53073 

417 E Mill St. 
Plymouth, WI 
53073 

Sarah Frank Class “B” Beer / 
“Class B” Liquor 

LAG Family LLC / LAG 
Family LLC 

1 Persnickety Pl. 
Plymouth, WI 
53073 

52 Stafford St. 
Plymouth, WI 
53073 

Lee Gentine Class “B” Beer / 
“Class B” Liquor 

JACEM INC / PJ 
Campbell 

114 Depot Rd. 
Plymouth, WI 
53073 

114 Depot Rd. 
Plymouth, WI 
53073 

Patrick 
Campbell 

Class “B” Beer / 
“Class B” Liquor 

Big Billy’s Family, LLC / 
Big Billy’s  

437 E Mill St. 
Plymouth, WI 
53073 

437 E Mill St. 
Plymouth, WI 
53073 

Marta 
Sayatovic 

Class “B” Beer / 
“Class B” Liquor 

Plymouth Art 
Foundation Inc. / 
Plymouth Art Center  

520 E Mill St. 
Plymouth, WI 
53073 

520 E Mill St. 
Plymouth, WI 
53073 

Donna Hahn Class “B” Beer / 
“Class B” Liquor 

Panko Enterprises LLC / 
Sweet Basil 

645 Walton Dr. 
Plymouth, WI 
53073 

645 Walton Dr. 
Plymouth, WI 
53073 

Sara Immel Class “B” Beer / 
“Class B” Liquor 

Pacific Grill 2 LLC / 
Pacifico Bar and Grill 

506 E Mill St. 
Plymouth, WI 
53073 

506 E Mill St. 
Plymouth, WI 
53073 

Jose Guzman Class “B” Beer / 
“Class B” Liquor 

Las Brisas II LLC / Las 
Brisas II LLC 

1414 Eastern Ave. 
Plymouth, WI 
53073 

1414 Eastern Ave. 
Plymouth, WI 
53073 

Sandra 
Bocardo 

Class “B” Beer / 
“Class B” Liquor 

The Fig and The 
Pheasant, LLC / Moxie 

PO Box 384 
Plymouth, WI 
53073 

301 E Mill St. 
Plymouth, WI 
53073 

Patrick 
O’Toole 

Class “B” Beer / 
“Class B” Liquor 

 



I hereby certify that the following establishments have applied to the City of Plymouth, WI for Cigarette 
Licenses for the period ending June 30, 2025. 

         Anna Voigt, City Clerk 

Business Name / Trade 
Name 

Location of Premises Agent License 

Kwik Trip / Kwik Trip 
470 

2480 Eastern Ave. 
Plymouth, WI 53073 

Kristal Sullivan Cigarette 

Hariomkrishna 
Patroleum Inc. / 
Plymouth BP 

1312 Eastern Ave. 
Plymouth, WI 53073 

Dhaval Patel Cigarette 

Plymouth Cut Rate Inc. 
/ Cut Rate Liquor 

1516 Eastern Ave. 
Plymouth, WI 53073 

Navneil Gill Cigarette 

GPM Southeast, LLC / 
Rstore #4519 

103 N. Milwaukee St. 
Plymouth, WI 53073 

Rhonda Urlaub Cigarette 

ONEGUIDE / Piggly 
Wiggly #336 

1411 Eastern Ave. 
Plymouth, WI 53073 

Mark Tietz Cigarette 

Walgreens Co / 
Walgreens #01497 
 

2455 Eastern Ave 
Plymouth, WI 53073 

Aidaelys Campos Cigarette 

Wal-Mart Stores East, 
LP / Walmart #3497 

428 Walton Dr. 
Plymouth, WI 53073 

Denton Helms Cigarette 

Weber Family Stations 
LLC / Weber’s of 
Plymouth 

3250 Highway PP 
Plymouth, WI 53073 

Dennis Weber Cigarette 

Ultimate Mart, LLC / 
Pick ‘n Save 

2643 Eastern Ave. 
Plymouth, WI 53073 

Shaun Priesgen Cigarette 

Hollandtown Minimart 
LLC / Plymouth Shell 

1403 Eastern Ave. 
Plymouth, WI 53073 

Durga Tiwari Cigarette 

Plymouth Retail LLC / 
Green House 

105 E Mill St. 
Plymouth, WI 53073 

Hugo Nguyen Cigarette 

Waldo Hemp Works / 
Waldo Hemp Works 

2621 Eastern Ave. 
Plymouth, WI 53073 

Tamara Barrow Cigarette 

Smoke Town LLC / 
Smoke Town LLC 

538 Walton Dr. 
Plymouth, WI 53073 

Ahmed Dawadeh Cigarette 

 



 

 
 
 
City of Plymouth 
128 Smith St. - P.O. Box 107 
Plymouth, WI  53073-0107 
  
 

 
  
 

 
 
 

Telephone: (920) 893-3745 
Facsimile: (920) 893-0183 

     Web Site:        plymouthgov.com 
 
 

 
DATE:  June 19, 2024 

TO:  Mayor and Common Council   
 
FROM: Tim Blakeslee, City Administrator/Utilities Manager   
 
RE: 6A. Approval of Ordinance No. 8 Amending Section 13-1-21, Zoning Map, and the City of 

Plymouth, Wisconsin Comprehensive Plan Existing Land Use Map and Future Land Use Plan 
Map by Changing Property from Commercial to Residential.  

 
7A. Approval of CSM - A division of Lot 3 of Certified Survey Map recorded in Volume 25 Pages 
135-138 as Document No. 1941216, being located in a part of the Northwest 1/4 of the 
Southeast 1/4, and a part of the Southwest 1/4 of the Southeast 1/4 of Section 23, Township 15 
North, Range 21 East, City of Plymouth, Sheboygan County, Wisconsin. 

 
 

 
 
Background:  
Parcel No. 59271827945 is located directly to the west of Walmart in 
Plymouth. Wangard is requesting a Certified Survey Map (CSM), a 
Comprehensive Plan Amendment, and Rezoning for a proposed multi-
family development project. A draft site plan is included in the packet and 
will be discussed in more detail at an upcoming plan commission meeting. 
 
CSM: Wangard is requesting that a portion of Parcel No. 59271827945 
(outlined in orange) be split from the original parcel for the proposed 
development. This will create a new parcel of approximately 20.1 acres 
and a smaller parcel of approximately 4.4 acres. The ~4.4-acre parcel will 
retain its current zoning and comprehensive plan designation. The full 
CSM is included in the application materials. Staff supports this request. 
 
Comp Plan Amendment: The comprehensive plan future land use map 
lists Parcel No. 59271827945 as Commercial & Environmental Corridors. 
Note: The Environmental Corridor refers to the areas adjacent to the 
unnamed tributary on the west and south of the property. The 
Environmental Corridor is not changing as part of this proposal. 
 
Wangard is requesting approval of a Comprehensive Plan Amendment 
that would designate the portion of Parcel No. 59271827945 (outlined in 
orange) as Residential & Environmental Corridors. The addition of a new 
multi-family development in this area will support the commercial 
businesses and have limited impact on neighboring residential properties. 
Staff supports this request.  The Comp Plan Amendment is included in Ordinance No. 8. 



Rezoning: Parcel No. 59271827945 is currently zoned B-3, Highway Business. Wangard is requesting that the 
portion of Parcel No. 59271827945 (outlined in orange) be rezoned to R-6, High Density Multi-Family Residential, 
for the proposed multi-family development.  
 
The properties to the north are vacant or multi-family.  The property to the east is the Walmart development.  
The properties to the south are a variety of businesses along Eastern Avenue. The property to the west is vacant. 
There are no directly abutting single family homes. Given the adjacent property uses, Staff supports this request 
to use the R-6 district. The Rezoning Amendment is included in Ordinance No. 8. 
 
Plan Commission Recommendation: 
At the Meeting on June 6, 2023 the Plan Commission unanimously recommended the CSM and Ordinance No. 
8 as presented.  
 
Recommendation:  
Approve the recommended the CSM and Ordinance No. 8 as presented. 
 
Attachments: 

• Ordinance No. 8 
• CSM 















































 

 
 
 
City of Plymouth 
128 Smith St. - P.O. Box 107 
Plymouth, WI  53073-0107 
  
 

 
  
 

 
 
 

Telephone: (920) 893-3745 
Facsimile: (920) 893-0183 

     Web Site:        plymouthgov.com 
 
 

 
DATE:  June 18, 2024 

TO:  Mayor and Common Council 

FROM: Cathy Austin, Director of Public Works   

RE: Acceptance of ROOTS Grant for Collaborative Acquisition of a Mobile 
Irrigation System 

 
 
In 2018 the Common Council passed Resolution 27, which was a resolution supporting the Rotary 
Club of Sheboygan and the Lakeshore Natural Resource Partnership, Inc. Restoration of our 
Trees Sheboygan (ROOTS) Program to mitigate the effects of the emerald ash borer (EAB) in 
Sheboygan County, Wisconsin.   
 
Since the start of this program in 2018, the City has been successful in 2020, 2022 and 2023 in 
obtaining grant dollars from this program.   
 
The City received a letter from ROOTS on June 13, 2024, indicating they have approved 
$4,145.00 for the purchases of a mobile irrigation system.   See attached award letter.   
 
The Public Works Department is requesting the Common Council accept the grant dollars.  
 
 Public Works appreciates the partnership over the years with ROOTS and the Rotary Club.  
 
 
 
Recommendation 
To accept the ROOTS grant funding for 2024 Collaborative Acquisition of the Mobile Irrigation 
System.   





 

 
 
 
City of Plymouth 
128 Smith St. - P.O. Box 107 
Plymouth, WI  53073-0107 
  
 

 
  
 

 
 
 

Telephone: (920) 893-3745 
Facsimile: (920) 893-0183 

     Web Site:        plymouthgov.com 
 
 

 
DATE:  June 19, 2024 

TO:  Mayor and Common Council 
 
FROM: Tim Blakeslee, City Administrator/Utilities Manager   
 
RE: Approve the Substation Agreement Amendment related to Landscaping at 

Substation No. 5 with ANR Pipeline Company 
 
 
 
Background:  
Plymouth Utilities is responsible for the construction and maintenance of electric distribution lines 
to local homes and businesses. The electric distribution equipment in the southwestern portion of 
the Plymouth service territory has reached near capacity in recent years. The Public Service 
Commission (PSC) approved the Certificate of Authority (CA) to construct a new substation in the 
Town of Mitchell at their open meeting on February 1, 2024 and issued their final order on March 
4, 2024. 
 
As part of the conditional use permit 
approved by the Town of Mitchell, the City 
of Plymouth is required to include 
screening and vegetation for the 
substation.  The approved landscaping 
plan is included as a picture to the right.  
As part of the attached agreement, ANR 
Pipeline has agreed to provide funding for 
landscaping in accordance with 
parameters of the substation agreement 
(8/11 of the costs) for the initial planting 
and screening of the project.  This was not 
included in the original substation 
agreement.  
 
Recommendation:  
Approve the Substation Agreement Amendment related to Landscaping at Substation No. 5 with 
ANR Pipeline Company.  
 
Attachments: 

1. Substation Agreement Amendment 



 

 

 

 

City of Plymouth 
128 Smith St. - P.O. Box 107 
Plymouth, WI 53073-0107 

 
 

 
Jeff Bickar 
Project Manager 
US Gas Growth Projects 
Jeff_Bickar@tcenergy.com 

Telephone: (920) 893-3745 
Facsimile: (920) 893-0183 
Web Site: plymouthgov.com 

June 29, 2024 
 
Via email only 

Dear Jeff: 

This letter is intended to memorialize our discussions with regard to ANR Pipeline Company (“ANR”) assistance 
for the commitments Plymouth Utilities has made to the Town of Mitchell in securing a conditional use permit 
("Mitchell CUP"} for the construction of Plymouth Sub #5.  According to the Mitchell CUP,  Plymouth Utilities must 
develop a landscaping plan with a number of specific features.  The plan, which is attached to this letter, is estimated to 
cost between $100,000 and $120,000. The landscaping would be implemented, of course, only after a certificate of 
authority (CA} for the substation is granted by the Wisconsin Public Service Commission. 

In addition, Plymouth Utilities made a commitment to the Town Board to provide additional support to certain 
neighbors impacted by the substation development.  This support would take the form of tree or bush landscaping 
coverage and would be made available on request of the impacted neighbors by a date certain after the substation 
construction is complete. We have not quantified the amount of this support, but we anticipate that could be 
approximately $20,000. 

 
As we have discussed, these commitments have been made by Plymouth Utilities as part of the process of 

securing the local permits we need from the Town of Mitchell.  As such, they were not included in the $6.754 million 
Contribution in Aid of Construction (CIAC} provided by ANR in accordance with the Substation Agreement, dated 
December 27, 2022, between ANR and Plymouth Utilities.  Instead, these landscaping costs would be included as part of 
the final CIAC charge once the substation is constructed. Again, as indicated above, Plymouth Utilities does not 
anticipate incurring these costs unless, and until, the CA is granted. 

Please contact me if you have any questions. Otherwise, please indicate by signature below that the Substation 
Agreement shall be amended by including  such landscaping costs as part of the CIAC pursuant to the Substation 
Agreement, and that ANR shall pay such CIAC in accordance with the terms of the Substation Agreement  if and when the 
costs are incurred.  Plymouth Utilities will advise ANR of any anticipated landscaping costs that might exceed the 
amounts described above.   

This letter is an amendment to the Substation Agreement.  This letter may be executed in one or more 
counterparts, each of which shall constitute an original and all of which when taken together shall constitute one 
binding agreement. Except as expressly set forth in this letter, the terms and conditions set forth in the Substation 
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect, and from and after the date of this letter all references to the 
Agreement shall be deemed to be references to the Agreement as amended hereby.  This letter, together with the 
Substaton Agreement, contains the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof 



 

 

and supersedes any and all prior and contemporaneous negotiations, representations, understandings and agreements, 
whether written or oral.   
 

With regards, 
 
 

Tim Blakeslee, City Administrator 
City of Plymouth 

 
 
Acknowledged and agreed: 

 
 

 

Jeff Bickar, Project Manager 


	Common Council 06/25/24
	Consent Agenda
	3A. Approve Minutes 06/11/24
	3BI. Approve Electric, Water and Sewer Sales Report - May
	3BII. Approve Utility Related Write Offs for May / June
	3C. Minutes Acknowledged for Filing
	3D. Approve list of July 1, 2024 to June 30, 2024 Alcohol Beverage Licenses and Cigarette Application

	Public Hearing
	6A. Public Hearing Ordinance No. 8 An Ordinance Amending Section 13-1-21, Zoning Map, and the City of Plymouth, Wisconsin Comprehensive Plan Existing Land Use Map and Future Land Use Map by Changing Property from Commercial to Residential

	New Buiness
	7A. Approve CSM - Wangard
	7B. Acceptance of ROOTS Grant for Collaborative Acquisition of a Mobile Irrigation System
	7C. Approval of Substation Agreement Amendment Related to Landscaping at Substation No. 5 with ANR Pipeline Company




